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Richard Morris describes the construction and use of the Observatory in detail in his book. John Dillwyn Llewelyn had the observatory built because both he, and his daughter Thereza, were keen amateur astronomers. Thereza laid the foundation stone on July 7 1851, and John photographed construction in 1851-52. It was from here in 1856-57 that Thereza and John produced one of the first photographs of the moon. 

Structurally the Observatory comprises a cylindrical, stone built instrument room with a rectangular room, almost certainly a developing room, attached. The construction of the rectangular room is unusual, as it is built from rectangular, hollow tiles. The structure probably fell into disrepair in the 1920s, and during world war two it was used for target practice by American troops stationed at Penllergare. In 1981, Lliw Valley Borough Council restored the observatory, but subsequently little maintenance was carried out and the structure is once more falling into disrepair.

In 1998, the observatory was designated a Scheduled Ancient Monument (reference GM410[SWA]).

Sources: Ordnance Survey 1:2500 maps 1877, 1898, 1916 and 1936; R Morris 1999, Penllergare A Victorian Paradise; Lliw Valley Borough Council, n.d., Penllergaer Equatorial Observatory

